
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, September 8, 2015                                                                                               City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

 Mayor’s Day of Concern for the Hungry Proclamation – Saturday, September 19, 2015 (Lila 
Henderson, Executive Director, Maple Valley Food Bank) 

 Fire Prevention Week Proclamation – Week of October 4, 2015 (Battalion Chief Tom Betenson) 

 Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation – October (Throm) 

 National Recovery Month Proclamation – September (Paula Frederick, Kent Youth & Family 
Services) 

 Recognition of State Legislators (Council) 
 

RECEPTION FOR STATE LEGISLATORS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 

not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  July 28, 2015 Special Study Session, July 28, 2015 Regular Meeting, August 11, 2015 

Special & Regular Meetings (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Consider Resolution Adopting Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan Fourth Edition 

(Bates) 
C-4. Authorize Use of Traffic Impact Fees for Right-of-Way Phase of CIP 1127 (Vondran) 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
1. Continue Discussion of Funding Priorities (Bolli/Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Appointment to Arts Commission (Council) 
3. Consider Appointments to Parks and Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee (PRePAC) (Bolli) 
4. Covington Community Park Phase II Funding and Project Timeline Update (Feser) 
5. 2015 Second Quarter Financial Report (Hendrickson) 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 To Discuss Potential Litigation Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  September 8, 2015   

 

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  JULY 28, 2015 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL STUDY 

SESSION MINUTES; JULY 28, 2015 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES; AND AUGUST 11, 2015 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 

 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 

 

EXPLANATION:  

 

ALTERNATIVES:   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  

 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the July 28, 2015 City Council Special Study 
Session Minutes; July 28, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting 
Minutes; and August 11, 2015 City Council Special & Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 82



Unapproved Draft – July 28, 2015 Special Study Session 

Submitted for Approval:  September 8, 2015 

 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Study Session 

Tuesday, July 28, 2015 
 

(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 

meeting). 

 

The Special Study Session was called to order in the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st 

Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, July 28, 2015, at 6:03 p.m., with Mayor 

Harto presiding. 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 

Wagner. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; 

Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Scott 

Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 

 

Mayor Margaret Harto called the study session to order. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to approve the agenda. 
 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Funding Priorities. 

 

City Manager Regan Bolli introduced this item, and Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the 

presentation. 

 

Councilmembers reviewed the impact of ongoing and one-time projects in relation to three 

funds:  General, Streets and Parks; reviewed and discussed future “big ticket” items that will 

need bond financing; and discussed setting priorities to begin developing a strategy for long 

range financing. 

 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Bolli, Mr. Hendrickson, and 

various city staff provided responses. 

 

Council Action:  There was Council consensus that this item would be revisited at future 
meetings for further discussion and action. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

 

2 of 82



Unapproved Draft – July 28, 2015 Special Study Session 

Submitted for Approval:  September 8, 2015 

 
 

There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  

 

__________________________________         

Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 

Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

 

3 of 82



Unapproved Draft–July 28, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  September 8, 2015 

 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, July 28, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 

meeting). 

 

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 

Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, July 28, 

2015, at 7:06 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 

Wagner. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 

Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard 

Hart, Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Scott 

Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City 

Clerk/Executive Assistant. 

 

Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

 

There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 

 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Vouchers:  Vouchers #32743-32817, including ACH payments and electronic funds 

transfers, in the amount of $167,110.62 dated July 10, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 

#1003967727-1003967743 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of 

$179,952.24, dated July 17, 2015. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-06 

 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, APPROVING 

THE FINAL PLAT OF MAPLE HILLS, PHASE I, PP99-004/ 

1025 FOR RECORDING.  

 

C-2. Resolution Approving Maple Hills Phase I Final Plat. 

4 of 82



Unapproved Draft–July 28, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  September 8, 2015 

 

 2 

 

C-3. Authorize Apex Center Right-of-Way and Easement Dedications. 

 

C-4. Authorize Amendments to Interlocal Agreement with King County Conservation Futures 

for SoCO Park/Jenkins Creek Trail. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-07 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DECLARING 

ONE VEHICLE AS SURPLUS PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZE 

PURCHASE OF A REPLACEMENT VEHICLE. 

 

C-5. Resolution Declaring Vehicle as Surplus and Authorizing Replacement Funds. 

 

C-6. Reject All Bids for City Wide Safety Improvements Project. 

 

Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 

REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS: 
Human Services Commission – No report. 

 

Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair Laura Morrissey reported on the June 17 and July 15 

meetings. 

 

Arts Commission – Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas reported on the June 11 and July 

9 meetings. 

 

Planning Commission – Chair Bill Judd reported on the June 7 and July 16 meetings.  The June 

18 and July 2 meetings were canceled. 

 

Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the May 28 and July 23 

meetings.  The June 25 meeting was canceled. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider Appointments to Covington Economic Development Council. 

 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
appoint Steven Pand to fill a position on the Covington Economic Development Council 
with a term expiring July 31, 2017.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried.  

 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Smith seconded to 
appoint Kathy Fosjord to fill a position on the Covington Economic Development Council 
with a term expiring July 31, 2017.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
  
2.  Consider Funding Priorities. 

5 of 82



Unapproved Draft–July 28, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  September 8, 2015 

 

 3 

 

Mayor Harto recapped the City Council Study Session presentation that occurred just prior to the 

Regular Council Meeting and invited each councilmember to provide comments and direction to 

staff. 

 

Councilmembers shared ideas on revenue and projects. 

 

City Manger Regan Bolli indicated staff will condense the list from the Study Session, focusing 

on the priorities councilmembers just shared and bring the item back to a future meeting. 

 

Councilmember Scott suggested this same presentation be given at this time each year right 

before budget time, and councilmembers agreed. 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 

 

Councilmember Smith announced he would be unable to attend the August 11 Council Meeting.  

Councilmember Lanza announced he would also be unable to attend the August 11 Council 

Meeting.  

 

Council Action:  There was Council consensus to ratify the Mayor’s signature on a letter to 
Congressman Reichert in regards to the sales tax issue. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

 

Kathryn Taylor, Senior Local Government Affairs Representative, Puget Sound Energy, 
355 110th Avenue NE, Bellevue, informed Council that she was attending the meeting to visit 

and see how Covington City Council meetings were run.  Ms. Taylor offered her assistance if 

there were any questions she could answer or be if she could be of any service. 

 

There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To discuss potential litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) from 8:10 to 8:25 p.m. 

 

Mayor Harto announced the City Council would move into Executive Session for fifteen minutes 

after which no further action was anticipated. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 

 

Prepared by:      Submitted by:  

 

__________________________________         

Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 

Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

6 of 82



Unapproved Draft – August 11, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  September 8, 2015 

 

 

1 

 

City of Covington 
Special & Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, August 11, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 

meeting). 

 

INTERVIEWS– 5:20-7:00 P.M.: 
The Council conducted interviews for openings on the Arts Commission and Planning 

Commission.  Applicants interviewed included Tyler Bykonen for Arts Commission; and Kevin 

Holland, Paul Max, Michele Dimmett, and Jennifer Gilbert-Smith for Planning Commission. 

 

The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 

Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, August 

11, 2015, at 7:05 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Jeff Wagner. 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mark Lanza and Sean Smith. 

 

Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
excuse Councilmembers Lanza and Smith.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 

STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 

Manager; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, Community Development 

Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Scott Thomas, Parks & 

Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; and Sharon Scott, 

City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 

 

Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to approve the Agenda.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

 Covington Police Chief Andrew McCurdy introduced Detective Jason Stanley and Detective 

Anthony Mulinax with the City of Maple Valley and Brad Finegood, Assistant Division 

Director of Substance Abuse and Mental Health, King County Sheriff’s Office.  A presentation 

was then provided regarding drug dependency resources and trends. 

 

 

7 of 82



Unapproved Draft – August 11, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  September 8, 2015 

 

 

2 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

 

There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 

 

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  July 14, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 

C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #32818-32879, including ACH payments, in the amount of 

$587,953.42 dated July 24, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004028144-1004028158 

inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of $191,127.25, dated July 31, 

2015. 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 15-08 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, APPROVING 

THE FINAL PLAT OF VICTORIAN MEADOWS LU05-0047/ 

2100 FOR RECORDING.  

 

C-3. Approve Resolution for Adopting Victoria Meadows Final Plat. 

 

C-4. Approve Watershed Resource Inventory Area (WRIA) 9 Interlocal Agreement Renewal. 

 

C-5. Approve Interlocal Agreement with King County Sheriff’s Office for Use of Electronic 

Fingerprint Capture Equipment. 

 

Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Public Hearing and Consideration of an Ordinance Extending the Moratorium on Medical 

Marijuana Production and Processing Facilities, Dispensaries, and Collection Gardens for Six 

Months. 

 

Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 

 

Mayor Harto called for public comments regarding the public hearing. 

 

There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for the public 

hearing. 

 

 

 

 

8 of 82



Unapproved Draft – August 11, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  September 8, 2015 

 

 

3 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 06-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, TO EXTEND THE 

MORATORIUM ON THE ESTABLISHMENT, LOCATION, 

OPERATION, LICENSING, MAINTENANCE, OR 

CONTINUATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA 

DISPENSARIES, PRODUCTION FACILITIES, PROCESSING 

FACILITIES, COLLECTIVE GARDENS, AND RELATED 

BUSINESSES WITHIN THE CITY OF COVINGTON FOR SIX 

MONTHS; PROVIDING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 

MORATORIUM; ADOPTING FINDINGS OF FACT 

SUPPORTING THE MORATORIUM ADOPTED BY 

ORDINANCE NOs. 08-11, 12-12, 01-13, 07-13, 05-14, 10-14, and 

02-15; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. 

 

Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Mayor Pro Tem Wagner seconded to 
pass Ordinance No. 06-15, in substantial form as that provided in the agenda packet, to 
extend the moratorium on medical marijuana collective gardens, production and 
processing facilities, dispensaries, and related businesses for an additional six months.  
Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Consider Appointments to Planning Commission.   

 

Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
appoint Paul Max to fill an open position on the Planning Commission for an applicant 
residing inside Covington city limits with a term expiring August 31, 2019.  Vote:  5-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to appoint Chele Dimmett to fill an open position on the Planning Commission for an 
applicant residing inside Covington city limits with a term expiring August 31, 2019.  Vote:  
5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
appoint Jennifer Gilbert-Smith to fill an open position on the Planning Commission for an 
applicant residing inside or outside Covington city limits (within three-mile radius) with a 
term expiring August 31, 2019.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 

 

9 of 82



Unapproved Draft – August 11, 2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 

Submitted for Approval:  September 8, 2015 

 

 

4 

 

Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
cancel the August 25 City Council meeting.  Vote:  5-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 

 

There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To discuss potential litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) and to review the performance 

of a public employee pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) from 8:32 to 8:50 p.m. 

 

Mayor Harto announced the City Council would move into Executive Session after which no 

further action was anticipated.   

 

ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  

 

__________________________________         

Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 

Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

10 of 82



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date:  September 8, 2015 

 

SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  

 

RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  Electronic fund transfer in the amount of $26,930.10 dated July 21, 2015; 

Vouchers #32880-32957, including ACH payments and electronic funds transfers, in the 

amount of $253,673.40 dated August 7, 2015; Vouchers #32958-33022, including ACH 

payments and electronic funds transfers, in the amount of $888,908.71 dated August 21, 2015; 

Vouchers #33023-33028, including ACH payments, in the amount of $4,477.08 dated August 

24, 2015; Vouchers #33029-33029, including ACH payments, in the amount of $150.00 dated 

August 27, 2015; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004086714-1004086728 and Paylocity Payroll 

Checks# 1004086733-1004086733 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of 

$180,453.73, dated August 14, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004148643-1004148654 

inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in the amount of $201,932.39 dated August 28, 2015. 

 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 

 

EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 

Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Electronic fund transfer in the amount of 
$26,930.10 dated July 21, 2015; Vouchers #32880-32957, including ACH 
payments and electronic funds transfers, in the amount of $253,673.40 dated 
August 7, 2015; Vouchers #32958-33022, including ACH payments and 
electronic funds transfers, in the amount of $888,908.71 dated August 21, 
2015; Vouchers #33023-33028, including ACH payments, in the amount of 
$4,477.08 dated August 24, 2015; Vouchers #33029-33029, including ACH 
payments, in the amount of $150.00 dated August 27, 2015; Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1004086714-1004086728 and Paylocity Payroll Checks# 
1004086733-1004086733 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the 
amount of $180,453.73, dated August 14, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1004148643-1004148654 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in 
the amount of $201,932.39 dated August 28, 2015. 
 
 

 

11 of 82



12 of 82



13 of 82



14 of 82



15 of 82



16 of 82



17 of 82



18 of 82



19 of 82



20 of 82



21 of 82



22 of 82



23 of 82



24 of 82



25 of 82



26 of 82



27 of 82



28 of 82



29 of 82



30 of 82



31 of 82



32 of 82



33 of 82



34 of 82



35 of 82



36 of 82



37 of 82



38 of 82



39 of 82



40 of 82



41 of 82



42 of 82



43 of 82



44 of 82



45 of 82



46 of 82



47 of 82



 

 Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date:  September 8, 2015 

 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE COMPREHENSIVE 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN FOURTH EDITION. 

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Resolution 

2. Letter Dated July 22, 2015 from State of Washington, Military Department – Emergency 

Management Division 

3. Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, Fourth Edition – July 2015 (PDF provided 
to City Council.  A hard copy is available at City Hall for public viewing.) 

 

PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor/Public Works 

 

EXPLANATION: 

The State mandates that the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) be updated 

every four years.  In order to receive FEMA reimbursement and grant opportunities the CEMP 

must be maintained.  Staff is providing the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, 

Fourth Edition to the City Council for consideration. 

 

The Third Edition of the CEMP was adopted on January 11, 2011.  The following state laws 

require the City to exercise all elements of the Emergency Management Plan and update the plan 

every four years.  The state code sections are RCW 38.52.070 and WAC 118-30-060.   

 

With the guidance of Bridgeview Consulting, LLC and assistance from members of the 

Emergency Management Committee and several outside agencies, our plan was updated during 

the last eight months.  The plan update required a great deal of staff, volunteer and Emergency 

Management Committee time.  Various members of the Emergency Management Committee and 

outside agencies took responsibility to review and submit revisions for each section of the plan.  

The plan update includes the National Response Framework (NRF), the National Incident 

Management System (NIMS), the Washington State Comprehensive Emergency Management 

Plan and WAC 118-30-060 defined criteria. 

 

The CEMP Fourth Edition was sent to the State of Washington Emergency Management 

Division for review on June 3, 2015.  The review and approval of our CEMP was completed on 

July 22, 2015 (see Attachment 2).  The State of Washington Emergency Management Division 

provided us with review comments that need to be addressed in our next plan revision. 

 

To date the Emergency Management Committee has only conducted drills and tabletop 

exercises.  We should also conduct functional and fully functional exercises to ensure our plan 

will stand the test of a disaster.  Staff will propose in future budget submittals participation with 

48 of 82



 

other jurisdictions in both functional and fully functional exercises, as these require a significant 

amount of time, staff and resources to plan, coordinate and conduct. 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan 

Fourth Edition and direct staff to continue efforts to keep the document up to date as required by 

state law. 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Not adopt the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan update.  This would result in not 

being eligible for FEMA reimbursements and grants in the future. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

The City Council approved a Decision Card in the 2015 Budget for $40,000 for a consultant to 

update the plan.  The office supplies and printing costs are included in the annual base budget for 

Emergency Management. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:            Ordinance      X    Resolution   ______Motion            Other 

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds to adopt a Resolution adopting the City of Covington 
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, Fourth Edition as approved 
by the State of Washington Emergency Management Division. 
 

REVIEWED BY:   City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

49 of 82



 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING THE CITY OF COVINGTON 
COMPREHENSIVE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN, 
FOURTH EDITION AS APPROVED BY THE STATE OF 
WASHINGTON EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Covington passed Ordinance No. 85-98 establishing a 

Department of Emergency Management for the purpose of responding to any emergency that 

demands immediate action in order to preserve public health, life, and property or to assist in 

providing relief to the City if overtaken by such an occurrence and, in addition, to deal with any 

disaster of such a dimension or degree of destructiveness as to warrant the governor declaring a 

state of emergency; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 38.52.070 and WAC 118.30.050 direct local organizations to 

establish operations of emergency powers and procedures; and  

WHEREAS, WAC 118.30.060 requires each political subdivision to develop and 

maintain a current emergency plan and the plan shall be comprehensive in nature; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Covington adopted Resolution No. 01/12 on 

March 20, 2001, which adopted an Emergency Management Plan, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Covington adopted Resolution No. 05-78 on 

December 13, 2005, which adopted the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, Second 

Edition, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Covington adopted Resolution No. 11-01 on 

January, 11, 2011, which adopted the Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, Third 

Edition, and 

WHEREAS, the Covington Emergency Management Committee has exercised the 

existing plan, drafted revisions to said plan, and received acceptance of said revisions from the 

State of Washington, Military Department, Emergency Management Division; therefore 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Covington, King County, 

Washington, as follows: 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

50 of 82



 

Section 1:  The City of Covington, Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, 

Fourth Edition, is hereby adopted, and per WAC 118.30.060 staff is directed to implement, 

exercise, and amend said plan. 

Section 2:  Staff is directed to continue its state mandated efforts to update the plan every 

four years. 

 

ADOPTED in open and regular session on this 8th day of September, 2015. 

 

 

        _____________________________ 

        Mayor Margaret Harto 

 

Attested: 

 

___________________________ 

Sharon Scott, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 

___________________________ 

Sara Springer, City Attorney 

 

51 of 82



ATTACHMENT 2

52 of 82



July 15, 2015 

City of Covington Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan (CEMP) Review 
Comments/Recommendations 

 
The City of Covington CEMP is well written, easy to understand and provides necessary information for 

the City’s administration of the emergency management program and coordination of emergency 

operations.  

 

The few comments below identify areas needing additional information or points of non-compliance.  

Please make adjustments for CEMP update. 

 

Page Location Comment/Recommendation Citation/Reference 
 The word “citizen” to reference the public is losing 

favor. The trend is to use “residents and business 

owners”. 

 

Basic Plan, Page 37 

#5 

Include notifying the State Emergency Operations 

Center of proclamations. 

Completed 7/15/15 

Basic Plan, Page 41 

#6 

Include ICS/NIMS application in the exercises. HSPD 5 

Completed 7/15/15 

 Include the signed Promulgation when submitting the 

complete CEMP. 

RCW 38.52 

Throughout ESFs Consistently use “All City Departments”. “All 

Departments” is used in a few locations and need a 

little more specificity to distinguish city departments 

from other departments. 

To be addressed next 

update cycle. 

ESF 1, Page 4. VI. A. 

1.  

Replace State Emergency Management with State 

Emergency Operations Center. 

Completed 7/15/15 

ESF 2, Page 3. IV. A 4th paragraph: Replace Washington State Emergency 

Management Division with State Emergency 

Operations Center. 

Completed 7/15/15 

ESF 5, Page 2. IV. C. Replace State Emergency Management Division with 

State Emergency Operations Center. 

Completed 7/15/15 

ESF 8, Page 6. F. 1. 

b) 

Public Health: Define MAC Group. Added to Definitions 

Completed 7/15/15 

ESF 8, Page 9. KC 

Police Chaplaincy 

Clarify the roles of these two agencies in relationship 

with the Police Chaplaincy. 

Completed 7/15/15 

ESF 11, Page 1 The Regional Animal Services of King County is 

listed as a Support Agency. Its role is not described 

in Responsibilities. 

Completed 7/15/15 

 Elaborate on the potential for plant & animal disease 

infestations. If no significant agricultural resources 

are within City boundaries, state that. 

Completed 7/15/15 

ESF 12, Page 3. IV. 

A. 3.  

There are four natural gas companies in Washington: 

Northwest Natural Gas (includes Williams Pipeline), 

Cascade Natural Gas, Puget Sound Energy, & Avista 

Corporation. Make correction. 

Completed 7/15/15 

ESF 12, Page 7  Include statements of responsibilities for PSE & 

Williams in V. Responsibilities. 

Completed 7/15/15 

ESF 14 Good detail on short term recovery. Include more 

detail on long term recovery in next draft. 

To be completed next 

update cycle. 

ESF 14, Page 13. a) Remove reference to ESF 20. Completed 7/15/15 

ESF 15, Page 5. E. 1. Correct DFO to say JFO. Completed 7/15/15 

 

53 of 82



 Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date:  September 8, 2015 

 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE USE OF TRAFFIC IMPACT FEES FOR THE RIGHT-OF-WAY 

PHASE OF CIP 1127 

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 

 

ATTACHMENT(S):  None 

 

PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 

 

EXPLANATION: 

We are currently in the process of transitioning into the right-of-way (ROW) acquisition phase of 

the SR 516 Jenkins Creek to 185th Place SE (CIP 1127) project.  In 2012, we received $800,000 

from the legislature as part of a supplemental transportation budget (in addition to funds that we 

received for design).  Those funds were for the ROW phase of this project.  Those funds have 

been waiting to be obligated once the project moved into the ROW phase.  The delay has been 

primarily attributed to going through the environmental process which has taken considerable 

time and is required prior to the ROW phase.  Although we have not completed all of the 

environmental phase we received the approval from WSDOT to begin the process to get the 

ROW phase moving.   

 

In order to get the $800,000 mentioned above, PSRC (Puget Sound Regional Council) requires 

that the phase be fully funded and there is sufficient documentation that any local funds planned 

to be used for that phase have been allocated.  Normally our 2016 budget would be sufficient 

documentation, but the approval from PSRC is scheduled prior to the adoption of our 2016 

budget. So, in order to meet the timeline we are requesting this authorization that will be 

sufficient documentation for PSRC. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

The estimated cost for the ROW phase is $1,205,000.  The planned budget for the ROW phase 

has always included the use of a portion of the city’s traffic impact fees around $400,000.  The 

current balance from traffic impact fees is $2.1 million.   

 

In addition, there have been some questions whether we can use a portion of the $13.5 million 

that we just received from the legislature.  We did check into that and the funds were marked for 

construction and not for ROW.  As mentioned earlier, our ROW phase has had the use of traffic 

impact fees included in the project budget and mentioned in briefing sheets provided to 

legislators.         

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:          Ordinance           Resolution     X     Motion           Other 

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds to pass a Motion authorizing the use of $405,000 in traffic impact 
fees for the Right-of-Way phase of CIP 1127. 
 

REVIEWED BY:   City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

54 of 82



Agenda Item 1  
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: September 8, 2015  

 
SUBJECT:  PROJECT PRIORITIZATION and FUNDING STRATEGIES - CONTINUED 

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 

                                          

ATTACHMENT(S):  

1) Project cost list 

 

PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director  

 

EXPLANATION: 

On July 28, council held a study session to evaluate the impact of future on-going and one-time 

projects on the General, Parks, and Street Funds. Staff presented a long-term forecast outlining 

the costs of these projects and potential revenue offsets. Utilizing an interactive forecast, staff 

was able to project changes in fund balances based on specific decision points.  

 

The ultimate goal of that meeting was to begin the prioritization process on both the project costs 

and the associated revenues. 

 

The following is feedback staff received from council members during the regular meeting (the 

options are not in priority order): 

 

Funding Options: 

 Car tabs 

 Extend the utility tax 

 

Projects listed by Council at the last meeting: 

 

PROJECT TYPE COST 
Police officers Ongoing $180,000/officer 

Parks One-time (Capital) 
Variable depending on 

project (millions) 

Maintenance Worker(s) Ongoing $120,000 (2017+) 

Town Center (Tri-Park) One-time (Capital) $65,000 (2017) 

Jenkins Creek Park One-time (Capital) $73,000 (2020) 

Ingress into city on 164th at 

the Highway 18 interchange 
One-time (Capital) Unknown 

Easy access to Town Center One-time (Capital) Unknown 

Town Center One-time (Capital) Total Costs are unknown 

 

 

 

 

 

55 of 82



A couple of items to note: 

 

1) The car tab fee was changed during the recent legislative session. The non-voted $20 

fee can be raised up to $40 after two years and up to $50 after another two years.  

2) Liquor revenues have been restored to pre-2013 levels during this legislative session. 

However, that only adds approximately $30,000 to the 2016 forecast over 2015 

expected actuals.  

  

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Add new items to the priority list.   

2. Return the issue to city staff for further study and analysis. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

Any fiscal impact will be determined by the cost of the ongoing or one-time items and any 

revenues applied to offset said costs.  

 

Car tabs at a $20 level would bring in approximately $280,000 annually. Extending the city’s 

existing utility tax councilmanically (increase cable TV, solid waste and SWM) would bring in 

about $96,000 for every 1% increase.  

 

A water utility tax administered and collected by Covington Water District and remitted to the 

city could potentially bring in about $38,000 per 1%. However, this revenue source has a number 

of obstacles associated with it and for now staff is recommending not to pursue this course of 

action.   

 

As staff mentioned at the July 28 meeting, a “best financial practice” is to offset ongoing costs 

by an equal amount of revenue for a net zero effect to the affected fund.  

  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution         Motion      X   Other 

 

ASK QUESTIONS OF AND PROVIDE DIRECTION TO STAFF 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney. 

 

56 of 82



Multiplier PROJECTS COST 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Comments

Ongoing:

Lease Renewal -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

New City Hall -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            700           700           700           700           700           700           700           Amount added to current lease for new building

2 Police officer -            376           391           407           423           440           457           476           495           515           535           557           579           602           Inflated at 4%

Opportunity fund -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Healthcare tax

Additional City Hall space 25              26              27              28              29              30              -            -            -            -            -            -            Take back some of the space currently leased by KCSO

Proposed decision cards 21              22              23              25              26              28              30              31              33              35              37              40              42              Adjusted after a two-year study of budget vs actual costs
-            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

-            -            397           438           456           475           494           515           1,236        1,226        1,248        1,270        1,294        1,319        1,344        

One-time:

CIP xfer -            

Website Upgrade 40,000      -            -            -            22              -            23              -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Comp Plan Update 180,000    -            237           

Impact Fee Deferral 4,000        -            4                 

Electronic Permitting 5,000        5                

Shoreline Mstr Program 80,000      110           

Jenkins Cr Park PD 50,000      52              

Aquatic Ctr Lifecycle 40,000      42              

Tri-Park 60,000      65              

Comm Rec Ctr Study 40,000      43              

Pipeline Trail North Design 30,000      36              

Jenkins Creek 60,000      73              

PROS Update 85,000      108           

CCP 3 Planning and Concept 50,000      71              

CCP City Match 354,000    177           177           

Offleash Dog Park 30,000      43              

Crystal View Park 225,000    274           

Friendship Park Renovation 171,000    208           

Pipeline Trail North 478,000    708           

SoCo Park Acquisition 560,000    582           253           

SoCo Park Acquisition 485,000    -            546           

Parks xfer 10              70              25              69              111           155           201           251           304           361           422           487           557           631           This is the amount needed to get Parks to at least 10% fund balance per policy

Streets xfer -            -            69              265           313           363           417           474           535           600           669           742           820           This is the amount needed to get Streets to at least 10% fund balance per policy

Proposed decision cards -            -            77              -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

-            592           680           332           684           399           1,059        672           905           888           1,010        1,730        1,156        1,299        1,451        

Revenue:

Street Fund xfer reduction -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

Hawk Property 
1 50              13              13              85              171           292           339           305           284           211           211           211           211           211           Amount from the annexation report provided by Oakpointe

2 Additional Utility Tax 96             192           194           196           198           200           202           204           206           208           210           212           214           216           Amount collected if 2% is added to cable TV, solid waste and SWM

Maple Hills

Cedar Springs

Town Center Retail

Xfer in from Street Fund -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            this is the amount returned to the general fund IF a $20 tab fee is applied to streets

5 Water Utility Tax 38             191           196           202           208           215           221           228           234           241           249           256           264           272           based on estimate provided by Covington Water

Sewer Utility Tax

Grants (Park acquisition) 582           -            -            546           -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            -            

632           395           403           1,029        577           706           761           737           724           661           670           680           689           699           

ATTACHMENT 1

57 of 82



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: September 8, 2015 

 

SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO OPENING ON THE ARTS COMMISSION  

 

RECOMMENDED BY: Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 

    Angie Feser, Interim Parks & Recreation Director 

            

ATTACHMENTS:  Application provided separately. 

 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 

 

EXPLANATION:  There is one vacant position:  Position No. 1.  The term for Position No. 1 

ends May 31, 2016. 

 

Tyler Bykonen was interviewed by the City Council on August 11, 2015 for a youth position on 

the Arts Commission. 

 

NOTE:  Ordinance No. 11-10. Membership, terms, residence requirements:  “The Arts 

Commission shall consist of seven members appointed by the City Council, two of which may be 

youth members who must be between the ages of 14 and 18 at the start of their terms.  Up to two 

of the members may reside outside the City, but those outside must reside within a three-mile 

radius of the City limits. The remaining five members must work or reside within the City 

limits.” 

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 

considered for the open position. 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 1 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2016. 
 

 
REVIEWED BY: Regan Bolli, City Manager  

 Angie Feser, Interim Parks & Recreation Director 

  

58 of 82



Agenda Item 3 
Covington City Council 

 Date: September 8, 2015  

 
SUBJECT:  APPOINTMENTS TO THE PARKS AND RECREATION PRIORITIES 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE (PRePAC) & APPOINTMENT OF A COMMITTEE 

CHAIR 

 

RECOMMENDED BY: Regan Bolli, City Manager 

  

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Recommended Appointees list 

 

PREPARED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 

 

EXPLANATION: 

On May 12, 2015 the City Council adopted a charter to form the Covington Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Committee (PRePAC).  Since that date city staff has sought committee members 

through advertising on Facebook, Twitter, Blog, webpage, word of mouth, and newspaper 

articles.  Over the course of three months we had twenty people apply to serve on the PRePAC, 

including three youth applicants.  The criteria for selecting who would serve on the committee 

are as follows: 

 

 Representation of the business community  

 Youth 

 Those who had not previously served on a city commission 

 Representation of current city commissions (CEDC, Arts, Planning, P&R, HS) 

 Diversity  

 Users of Covington Parks and Rec.  

 

After reviewing all the applications and conducting interviews of those that we did not know the 

following sixteen individuals are being recommended for appointment to the PRePAC: See 

Attachment.  Per the charter there are to be no alternates selected.  Additionally, the Charter 

states that the city council must also select a committee chair for the PRePAC.  The chair must 

be selected from those appointed by the council to the committee.   

  

ALTERNATIVES:  Choose not to appoint all or some of the recommended appointees.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution      X   Motion         Other 

 
Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to appoint the Parks and Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee 
per the city manager’s recommendations and to authorize the city manager 
to fill vacancies from among applicants. 

 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

59 of 82



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

PRePAC Recommended Appointees  
 

 George Pearson 

 Colleen McMeen 

 Zach Steele (Chamber-CEDC) 

 Katarzyna (Kasia) Jordan-Kelley 

 Leslie Hamada (HS Commission)  

 Joseph Cimaomo, Sr. 

 Pat Cavanaugh 

 Linda Gagliardi 

 Mike Hanratty 

 Aunna Moriarty 

 Bryan Higgins (P&R Commission)  

 Jennifer Harjehausen (Arts Commission)  

 Krista Bates (Planning Commission)  

 David Morasch (Youth) 

 Colin Bryant (Youth) 

 Kylee Johnson (Youth) 

  

60 of 82



Agenda Item 4  
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: September 8, 2015 

 
SUBJECT:  COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK – PHASE 2 EXPANSION UPDATE AND 

INPUT 

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Angie Feser, Interim Parks & Recreation Director 

                                          

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Current Phase 2 Design 

2. Phases 2 and 3 Design 

  

PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Interim Parks & Recreation 

 

EXPLANATION: 

Covington Community Park Phase 1 was completed and opened in June 2013. Since then, 

funding from 2013 legislative appropriations provided for 60% design for Phases 2 and 3 and 

staffing resources to apply for additional grants. In 2015 staff was successful in securing two 

RCO grants for a sum of $1m and requested $2m through additional legislative appropriation in 

order to build Phase 2. The legislature awarded the City a total of $5m, for an unplanned 

additional amount of $3m. The total budget for Phase 2 is now $8.5m with five funding sources 

including a city match of $354,000.  

 

This additional funding significantly impacts the project in terms of scope, timing and 

management requiring re-programming of Phase 2 (additions of features), delayed construction 

until 2017 and increased need for project and construction management.  

 

Council will have an opportunity to review and approve the proposed Phase 2 design later, but 

staff is requesting input for any preferences for additions to Phase 2 design to develop options. 

Possible additions include, but are not limited to -  

 

 Playground 

 Outdoor education center 

 Additional parking 

 Wetland mitigation (Phase 2 

or all) 

 Grading of Phase 3 area 

 Permanent restrooms 

 Frontage improvements 

 

Phase 2 options and cost estimates will be presented to Parks and Recreation Commission with 

their recommendation then presented to Council. The steps following Council’s approval then 

include construction drawings completion, applications for wetlands mitigation and permits, 

going out to bid through most of 2016 and construction slated for 2017. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

Matching fund approval will be addressed through a decision card during the 2016 budget 

approval process.  

61 of 82



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution         Motion      X   Other 

 

PROVIDE INPUT TO STAFF 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

62 of 82



ATTACHMENT 1

63 of 82



ATTACHMENT 2

64 of 82



Agenda Item 5  
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: September 8, 2015 

 
SUBJECT:  2015 SECOND QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORTS  

 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

                                          

ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. 2015 Second Quarter Report 

2. Quarterly Performance Reports by Fund 

3. Major Revenue Comparison   

4. Current Investment Listing 

 

PREPARED BY:   

Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

 

EXPLANATION: 

It is the policy of the City and a requirement of state law (RCW 35A.34.240) to provide financial 

reports to the governing body on a quarterly basis.  

 

ALTERNATIVES: 

N/A 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

None. 

 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution  _____Motion        X      Other 

 

ASK QUESTIONS OF STAFF  

 
REVIEWED BY:  Interim City Manager 

65 of 82



 

 

 U.S. real GDP growth for the second quarter was estimated to be 
2.3% at an annual rate.  

 U.S. employment expanded by215,000 new jobs in July. 

 U.S. housing starts have exceeded one million units for three con-
secutive months.  

 Nationally, home sales improved in February while residential con-
struction slowed.  

 Washington job growth remains solid. 

 Washington housing permits returned to a more sustainable level in 
the second quarter. 

 Washington’s economy is performing as expected in the June fore-
cast.  

 Seattle inflation remains low thanks to falling energy costs. 

 Washington car and truck sales are the strongest since November 
2007 just prior to the onset of the Great Recession.  

Economic & Revenue Summary 
~WA State Economic & Revenue Forecast Council  

2015 2nd Quarter 

Second quarter revenues continue to shine. Sales tax is exceeding ex-
pectations. If the economy holds this could be a banner year. REET col-
lections are above forecast due to sales of commercial property. Permit 
revenues continue to outpace the forecast. One low spot however is 
utility tax collections. They are below forecast partially due to a decline 
in cell phone tax revenue. The good news is the additional REET reve-
nue takes pressure off the General Fund to provide additional debt ser-
vice support at least for this year.  

Property Tax 2 

Real Estate Excise Tax 2 

Retail Sales and Use Tax  3 

Utility Tax 3 

General Fund 4 

  

  

Inside this issue: 

20
15

 2
n

d
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

 
 

C
I

T
Y

 
O

F
 

C
O

V
I

N
G

T
O

N
 

June 30, 2015 

 

Public Works 5 

Development Services 5 

Parks and Recreation 5 

Cash and Investments 6 

Capital Investment Program 7 

  

  

 

- Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 

ATTACHMENT 1

66 of 82



 

 

Page 2 20 15 2ND QUAR T ER  

Property tax is collected 
by King County and dis-
tributed on a daily basis to 
all taxing agencies within 
the county. Since taxes 
are due on April 30 and 
October 30 each year, the major 
distributions are realized in early 
May and November.  

Through the 2nd quarter the City 
received $,1313,722 or 52.5% of budg-
et. This is ahead of 2014 second 
quarter results by 2.9%.  

Property tax is the most stable 

source of revenue the City has. It is 
one leg of the “three legged” stool 
which the General Fund relies on for 
revenue. The other two legs are 
sales tax and utility tax.  

Property tax revenues are unre-
stricted. This means there are no 
restrictions on what the revenue 

can be used to pay for 
within the City. Currently 
property taxes are allocat-
ed 100% to the General 
Fund.  

The 2014 levy for 2015 col-
lection is $2,479,823 and the levy 
rate is $1.31/$1,000 assessed value. 
The legal cap for property tax col-
lections is $2.10/$1,000 assessed 
value.    

The City’s assessed valuation is 
$1.88 billion—an increase of $271.2 
million or 16.77% over the previous 
year.  

rate of one-half percent (two quar-
ter percents).  

Through June, collections are at 
$243,827 or 69.7% of the $350,000 
budget.  This is $84,104 or 52.7% 
higher than 2014.  

REET is a restricted revenue dedi-
cated to paying debt service on the 
2007 transportation bonds which 
paid for 168th Place SE/165th Place 

SE and loans from the Public Works 
Trust Fund. This tax is levied by the 
City on all sales of real estate at the 

There were no new home sales, 233 
existing home sales, and two com-
mercial sales through second quar-
ter. 

Generally, existing home sales drive 
REET, but commercial sales add rev-
enue rapidly and in large amounts.  

Property Tax 

2013 2014 2015 

 $   1,168,792  $   1,276,912  $   1,313,722 

Real Estate Excise Tax (REET) 

67 of 82



 

 

JU NE 30,  20 15  

Sales and Use Tax is the largest 
revenue source available to the 
City. It currently supports the 
General Fund at 84% and the 
Parks and Recreation Fund at 
16%.  The 2nd quarter (on a 

cash basis) is above 2014 levels 
by $188,737 or 11.8%.  Total col-
lections are at $1,783,728 or 
52.6%. The budget for 2015 is 
$3,391,790. 

In year over year comparisons, 
retail sales increased by 8.9%, 
construction increased 60.1%, 
food services were up 8.8%, 
and all other categories in-
creased 13.0%.   

 The City imposes a utility tax on electrical energy, nat-
ural gas, brokered natural gas, solid waste, cable tele-
vision, telephone, and SWM at the rate of 6.0%. 

The utility tax supports the general fund including 
debt service, streets, parks and parks CIP. 

The 2nd quarter Y/Y is down by $95,546 or 8.2%. How-
ever, collections remain on target with the forecast. 
Total collections are $1,073,701 or 50.7% of budget.  

Solid waste, Cable TV, and SWM remain fairly even 
with the prior year but all other 
categories are down when com-
pared to second quarter 2014. 

MuniServices is in the beginning 
stages of a tax audit of PSE to 
insure compliance with city  re-
quirements.  

Page 3 

Retail Sales & Use Tax 

Utility Tax 

Utility 2014 2015 

 Electricity $382,294 $332,098 

 Natural Gas 245,603 216,367 

 Solid Waste 65,329 80,849 

 Cable 151,880 156,330 

 Telephone 261,871 224,411 

SWM 62,269 63,645 

Total $1,169,247 $1,073,701 

$0

$50

$100

$150

$200

$250

$300

$350

$400

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

$ 
in

 Th
ou

sa
nd

s

2015 sales tax collections: moving the bar 

Range = 2006-2014 Actual = 2015

68 of 82



 

 

spending of 15.1% or $540,135 over 
the same period last year.  This is 
in due mainly to an increase in 
transfers out to Parks and Streets.   

Overall, 39.5% of the budget has 
been spent. Note in the chart be-
low that most all departments are 
below the 50% mark. City council, 
central services and legal are the 
exceptions due to front loaded 
expenses that will even out during 

Revenues for the second quarter 
are 52.0% of budget or $4.91 mil-
lion. This is more than 2014 levels 
by $325,068. Sales, utility, and 
property tax collections are de-
tailed on pages 2 and 3. Remain-
ing revenues outpaced 2014 by 
$225,263 or 7.0%.    

Total expenditures including 
transfers out through June are 
$4,128,569. This is an increase in 

the year.  

Law Enforcement costs are on 
track for the year. The first pay-
ment for January through May 
was made in June directly follow-
ing the first distribution of proper-
ty tax revenue.   

Beginning fund balance is 
$4,482,656—an increase of 
$455,851.  

Page 4 20 15 2ND QUAR T ER  

GENERAL FUND  

GENERAL FUND DEPARTMENT BUDGET UPDATE 

          

Department YTD - 2014 % of Budget YTD - 2015 % of Budget 

 City Council 316,239 65.6% $  320,412 66.0% 

 Municipal Court 163,188 25.6% 171,579 33.1% 

 Executive 452,087 47.7% 410,356 43.0% 

 Finance 252,110 45.5% 276,139 46.8% 

 Legal 33,671 36.4% 50,511 52.6% 

 Human Resources 164,418 45.6% 191,605 49.3% 

 Solid Waste 279 0.0% 398 0.0% 

 Central Services 349,495 65.8% 294,339 56.1% 

 Law Enforcement 1,346,774 41.5% 1,260,754 36.2% 

 Community Development 150,153 32.3% 151,540 36.9% 

 Operating Transfers Out 360,020 22.2% 1,001,025 33.4% 

TOTAL $   3,588,434 40.1% $   4,128,569 39.5% 

69 of 82



 

 

JU NE 30,  20 15  Page 5 

Public Works consists of Street 
Operations and Surface Water 
Management (SWM).  

Street Operations is funded by 
franchise fees received from Com-
cast and a motor vehicle fuel ex-
cise tax—gas tax.  

Franchise fees are slightly ahead 
of 2014 by 2.9% or $3,411 and 
ahead of forecast at $120,513 or 
51.6%.  

Total operating revenues are 
$313,807 and other financing 
sources are $165,537. At $479,344 

this puts total revenue sources at 
44.2% for the 2nd quarter.  

Gas tax came in slightly below 
budget. The forecast is generated 
through Municipal Research Ser-
vices Corporation (MRSC). The 
amount received is $181,191 or  
49.3% of budget. This is slightly 
higher than 2014 by $4,051 or 2.3%.   

Total expenditures are under 
budget for the second quarter. 
Total expenditures are at 41.2% or 
$449,335.  

Street operating revenues are be-

low operating expenditures by 
$130,841. Operating transfers of 
$165,537 from the general fund 
offset that deficit.  

Ending fund balance for Streets is 
$514,491 an increase of $46,625.  

 SWM is primarily funded through 
drainage fees that are collected 
by King County. The City received 
$966,058 or 51.7%.  Total revenues 
are at 45.7% or $992,185.  

Total expenditures are at 41.5% or 
$843,540. There are no transfers 
out to report.   

The number of permits for single 
family residences are at 2 com-
pared to 0 in 2014. There were 4 
multi-family permits and one com-
mercial permit during second 
quarter.  

Total revenue is at $879,653 or 
70.1% of forecast.  This is a 303.0% 
increase over 2014. Permit reve-
nue is at $501,937 which is a 323.7% 
increase over 2014 and is 53.6% of 
budget.  

Operational expenditures came in 
at 46.1% or $506,822.  

2015 is expected to have addition-
al development.  

Ending fund balance was 
$1,912,002 an increase of $20,773. 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

Parks is divided into five divisions: 
aquatics, maintenance, recrea-
tion, parks administration and ath-
letics. Revenues are derived from 
a portion of sales tax (16%), aquat-
ics revenue, recreation, athletics 
and some miscellaneous revenues 
such as rentals and interest earn-
ings.  

Operating revenue came in ahead  

of forecast at 58.1% or $794,615 —
led by sales tax and aquatics reve-
nue. Sales tax is 52.6% or $285,396,  
aquatics revenue is $408,383 or 
65.2%, athletics revenue is $56,620 
or 42.4% and recreation revenue is 
$32,416 or 53.9%. All four catego-
ries exceed 2014 in year over year 
results.     

Year to date attendance is 

27,718—slightly ahead of 2014 by 
291. 

Operating expenditures for the 
five divisions are 45.0% or 
$1,159,783. Expenditures are ex-
ceeding operating revenues by  
$365,168.  

Ending fund balance was $214,256 
a decrease of $87,222.  

PARKS and RECREATION 

70 of 82



 

 

Page 6 20 15 2ND QUAR T ER  

Total cash and investments total  
$14,965,150. This exceeds June 
2014 by $1,328,297. The two larg-
est gainers are Development Ser-
vices followed by the General 
Fund. With the exception of the 
LID fund, all funds gained over 
2014.    

The Local Government Invest-
ment Pool (LGIP) is currently earn-
ing 0.16% (as of June 2015). The 
City has $11,946,661 invested with 
the LGIP.  

Investments outside the LGIP to-
tal $2,412,652 (market value).  
That is split between US Govern-

ment Agencies  and Municipal Se-
curities. (six investments) 

The  weighted yield of the portfo-
lio with the state pool is 0.27% and 
without the pool is 0.81% (five 
times the pool earnings). Average 
days to maturity with the pool is 
104.54 days or 0.29 years and 
without the pool is 621.26 days or 

1.7 years.  

There were no maturities during 
the quarter. 

Cash on hand is kept at US Bank  
and various petty cash funds 
throughout the City. Investment 
securities are kept with US Bank 
Safekeeping.   

The chart below reflects the 
amount of cash and investments 
allocated to each fund within the 
City. This is reconciled and updat-
ed on a monthly basis.  

Cash & Investments 

TOTAL GENERAL LEDGER CASH ACCOUNTS 

 

 

   

 INVESTMENTS CASH TOTAL 

 GENERAL FUND       $452,069.20     $4,158,505.85     $4,610,575.05  

 STREET FUND                    -          416,708.52        416,708.52  

 CONTINGENCY FUND                    -          421,746.39        421,746.39  

 CUMULATIVE RESERVE FUND     1,254,271.00        158,055.65     1,412,326.65  

 REET 2nd 1/4% FUND                    -            28,725.59          28,725.59  

 REET 2ND 1/4% FUND                    -            28,725.58          28,725.58  

 DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FUND       505,437.81     1,776,829.28     2,282,267.09  

 PARKS and COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND                    -          335,881.65        335,881.65  

 LID 99-01 GUARANTY FUND                    -                       -                       -    

 LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE FUND                    -                       -                       -    

 LID 99.01 FUND                    -            34,337.12          34,337.12  

 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM                    -       2,323,988.61     2,323,988.61  

 SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT       200,874.20     2,226,942.31     2,427,816.51  

 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE                    -          254,262.64        254,262.64  

 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT                    -          387,788.37        387,788.37  

     

     $2,412,652.21   $12,552,497.56   $14,965,149.77  TOTAL ALL FUNDS 

71 of 82



 

 

JU NE 30,  20 15  Page 7 

Please see the chart below for current CIP 
activity.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Capital Investment Program 

16720 SE 272nd St 

Suite 100 

Covington, WA 98042 

C I T Y  O F  C O V I N G T O N  
F I N A N C E  D E P A R T M E N T  

Phone: 253-480-2400 

Fax: 253-480-2401 

Rob Hendrickson - Finance Director 
Casey Parker - Senior Accountant 

Lindsay Hagen - Accountant I 
Staci Cles - Senior Accounting Clerk 
Viviana Salazar—Finance Assistant 

Project # Project Description Revenues  Expenditures 

1010 Covington Community Park Phase 2 $0 
$3,113 

 

1014 Jenkins Creek Park 541 31,835 

1028 Annual Road Overlay 0 0 

1029 Annual Traffic Safety 1,018 2,420 

1057 SR 516 Safety Widening 220 220 

1127 SR 516 Widening at Jenkins Creek 854 10,854 

72 of 82



ATTACHMENT 2

73 of 82



74 of 82



75 of 82



76 of 82



77 of 82



ATTACHMENT 3

78 of 82



ATTACHMENT 4

79 of 82



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  September 8, 2015 

 

 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, September 22, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80 of 82



 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
Tuesday, September 22, 2015                                                                                             City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

 Roadmap to 70% Recycling (Division Director Pat McLaughlin & Recycling Manager Jeff Gaisford) 
– 20 minutes 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 

the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 

C-1. Minutes:  September 8, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  

C-3. Approve Street Sweeping Contract Amendment No. 1 (Vondran) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 

 Human Services Chair Fran McGregor:  June 11, July 9, August 13, and September 10 meetings. 

 Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  August 19 and September 16 meetings. 

 Planning Chair Bill Judd:  August 6, August 20, and September 17 meetings (September 3 
canceled). 

 Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  August 13 and September 10 meetings. 

 Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  August 27 meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Appointment to Human Services Commission (Council) 
2. Annual Aquatics Update Presentation – 30 minutes (Bahl) 
3. Consider Ordinance to Include Mandatory Garbage Collection and/or Yard Waste and Recycling 

(Vondran) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 

Draft 
as of 09/03/15 

 

81 of 82

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


  
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

82 of 82


	Consent Item C-1 Green Sheet 09-08-2015 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Item C-1 Attachment 1 07.28.2015 Special Study Session
	Consent Item C-1 Attachment 2 07.28.2015 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent Item C-1 Attachment 3 08.11.2015 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent Item C-2 Green Sheet 09-08-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Item C-2 Attachments 20150903_122950
	Consent Item C-3 Green Shet 09-08-15 CEMP Adoption Blue Sheet
	Consent Item C-3 Attachment 1 09-08-15 CEMP Adoption Resolution
	Consent Item C-3 Attachment 2 09-08-15 CEMP Approval Letter
	Consent Item C-4 Green Sheet 09-08-15 Authorize use of Traffic Impact Fees for 1127
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 9-8-15 Project Priorities
	Item 1 Attachment 1 09-08-2015 Attachment 1 Projects
	Item 2 Blue Sheet 09-08-2015 Appointment to Arts Commission
	Item 3 Blue Sheet and Attachment 1 Appoint_Blue Sheet
	Item 4 Blue Sheet CCP Ph2 Expansion
	Item 4 Attachment #1 - Current Phase 2 Design
	iTEM 4 Attachment #2 - Phases 2 and 3 Design
	Item 5 Blue Sheet 9_8_15 2nd Qtr Report
	Item 5 Attachment 1 2015 Second Qtr Report
	Item 5 Attachments 2-4 finance20150903_135747
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	09-22-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda



